2009

Linda Anderson v. Glenn Hunter Thompson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to Rule 3(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. What specific issues were reversed and remanded by the Utah Court of Appeals from its decision in Anderson II and were Respondent’s appellate attorney fees included in the reversal and remand decision from the Utah Court of Appeals? 7,8

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Whether the trial court properly complied, on remand, with the Utah Court of appeals decision in Anderson II is a question of law the court must review for correctness. Amax Magnesium Corp. V. Utah State Tax Comm'n, 874 P.2d 840,842 (Utah 1994).

2. Did the trial court understand the breadth and scope of the remand issue directives from the Court of Appeals in Anderson II? 8,9, 10

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Whether the trial court properly complied, on remand, with the Utah Court of appeals decision in Anderson II is a question of law the court must review for correctness. Amax Magnesium Corp. V. Utah State Tax Comm'n, 874 P.2d 840,842 (Utah 1994).

3. There is caselaw handed down from the Utah Court of Appeals giving specific directives regarding when trial courts may consider awarding appellate attorney fees- did the trial court in Anderson II adhere to those directives?10, 11,12, 13

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Whether the trial court properly complied, on remand, with the Utah Court of appeals decision in Anderson II is a question of law the court must review for correctness. Amax Magnesium Corp. V. Utah State Tax Comm'n, 874 P.2d 840,842 (Utah 1994).

4. If the Court of Appeals reverses the trial court's decision regarding Respondent's appellate attorney fees as requested in this appeal, should Petitioner be entitled to consideration of her appellate attorney fees for this appeal?13, 14

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The trial court committed error by awarding Appellee his attorney fees on appeal when the Utah Court of Appeals had not specifically remanded that issue to the trial court. In a Memorandum Decision issued by the Utah Court of Appeals in this same matter, Case #20070514 (Addendum #3), the Utah Court of Appeals remanded to the District Court

specific issues. The Court of Appeals directed that the trial court enter an order in accordance with the Court of Appeals directives which essentially reversed the initial trial court decision. The trial court awarded appellate attorney fees to the Respondent in the hearing on remand.

STATEMENT OF FACTS/NATURE OF THE CASE

A Decree of Divorce was signed in this case on April 20, 1999 (Record @ 46-54). Approximately six years later, Petitioner filed for a Modification of the Decree of Divorce (Record @ 59-61). On October 26, 2006 the case came on for trial. The trial court found Respondent to be in contempt of court for numerous violations of the Decree of Divorce and a judgment was entered against Respondent in the amount of \$44,311.00. The trial court also awarded Petitioner attorney fees and costs and ordered Respondent to pay Petitioner \$7,652.97 for her attorney fees and costs (Record @ 216-221).

Respondent appealed the trial court ruling (Record @ 222-223) resulting in Anderson v. Thompson, 2008 UT App3, 176 P.3d 464 (Anderson I, Addendum #4). The Utah Court of Appeals upheld the rulings of the trial court with the exception of the attorney fee award which was remanded to the trial court with specific directives that if the trial court determined that it could enter sufficient findings to support an attorney fee award, the trial court could enter an order of attorney fees. More importantly, the Court of Appeals gave the trial court specific additional directives regarding considerations the trial court could make concerning the determination of Petitioner's appeal attorney fees also to be examined by the trial court on remand.

After the October, 2006 trial, subsequent Order to Show Cause documents were filed by both sides (Record @ 233-274). In yet another hearing Respondent was found to be contempt of court for violation of a different court order than the contempts of court originally decided in the October, 2006 trial. The court awarded Petitioner her attorney fees and court costs dealing with this subsequent contempt of court by Respondent.

Respondent filed a second appeal, Anderson v. Thompson, 2008 UT App 170, (Anderson II) (Record @ 555-560 and Addendum #3). In this second appeal the Utah Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the trial court's finding of contempt against the Respondent stating that, "we remain unconvinced that there is clear and convincing proof that Husband knew what was required here, let alone that he willfully and knowingly refused to comply."

In Anderson II, because the Utah Court of Appeals reversed and remanded on the central issue regarding Respondent's contempt, the court also reversed the trial court's award of attorney fees and costs to Petitioner. Also in Anderson II, the Court of Appeals gave specific directives to the trial court in its remand on the issue of Respondent's attorney fees stating that, "we remand to the district court to determine if an award of costs and attorney fees should be awarded to husband and, if so, to determine the amount."

There was absolutely no directive by the Court of Appeals in Anderson II for the trial court on remand to address the issue of whether or not Respondent was entitled to his appeal attorney fees. On remand, the trial court awarded Respondent his attorney fees and costs and also awarded Respondent his attorney fees incurred from the appeal in Anderson II.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court erred in its decision to award Respondent his appellate attorney fees and costs from the Utah Court of Appeals reversed and remanded decision in Anderson II. The Utah Court of Appeals did not specifically direct the district trial court that it could entertain this specific issue. If an appellate court does not give instructions to a district trial court to decide appellate attorney fees, that lack of instruction is tantamount to a denial of Respondent's request for appellate attorney fees.

The only time a district trial court has the discretion to make a determination as to appellate attorney fees is when the appellate court decides and informs the district trial court that it may entertain that issue.

Since the district court lacked authority to make this decision, the award of the district trial court to allow \$7,463.04 in appeal attorney fees to Respondent in Anderson II should be reversed. Further, Petitioner should be awarded her attorney fees and court costs for the need to file this appeal due to the error of the district court.

ARGUMENT: POINT ONE

WHAT SPECIFIC ISSUES WERE REVERSED AND REMANDED BY THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS FROM ITS DECISION IN ANDERSON II AND WERE RESPONDENT'S APPELLATE ATTORNEY FEES INCLUDED IN THE REVERSAL AND REMAND DECISION FROM THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS?

The Utah Court of Appeals set forth its decision in Anderson II on May 15, 2008 (Addendum #3 and Record @ 536-540). Respondent prevailed in Anderson II and the Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the trial court decision regarding its finding of

contempt on the part of Respondent. The Court of Appeals specifically entered the following:

1. remand to the district court for entry of findings on whether Wife should have been ordered to refund child support overpayment;
2. reversal on the issue of contempt against the Respondent;
3. reversal on the award of attorney fees and costs to Wife, which award was based on the holding of contempt;
4. there is no basis to grant Wife's request for an award of attorney fees and costs for the appeal;
5. remand to the district court to determine if an award of costs and attorney fees should be awarded to Husband and, if so, to determine the amount.

In other words the Utah Court of Appeals in Anderson II reversed two issues and remanded two issues. These were the exact directives from the Court of Appeals to the trial court.

Could there be any confusion whatsoever of what exactly was reversed and remanded. Could the trial court not have understood or misinterpreted exactly what its duties were in the remand process including whether Respondent's appellate attorney fees were to be addressed or included in its decision.

Absolutely nowhere in the specific reversal and remand directives of the Utah Court of Appeals does the appeal court give the district trial court permission to address the appellate attorney fees issue.

ARGUMENT: POINT TWO

DID THE TRIAL COURT UNDERSTAND THE BREADTH AND SCOPE OF THE REMAND DIRECTIVES FROM THE COURT OF APPEALS IN ANDERSON II?

Because the trial court lumped all of Respondent's attorney fees into one large figure as requested by Respondent, that being \$11,365.54, is it possible that the trial court did not understand what was required in the remand directives from the Court of Appeals in its Anderson II remand.

In the hearing held on June 17, 2009 before Judge Henriod (Record @ 417, page 5 line 16) evidence was taken which insured that the trial court was aware of the specific several remanded issues and that the Anderson II remand did not direct the trial court to consider appellate attorney fees and costs for Respondent:

Mr. Friel: ... if we give respondent his attorney fees, this is not appeal fees, but his attorney fees, they should be \$3,902.50. The dispute is their interpretation or their position is that since they prevailed with the order to show cause, and since Your Honor ordered, gave them attorney fees, that since they prevailed on appeal they should also get those fees. And our - the Court of Appeals did not specifically address that, which was - which was exact opposite of appeal number one. And our position was that Your Honor, after receiving evidence at the February hearing and in your minute entry ruling, found not only that we should be awarded the reasonable attorney fees because of the needs-based analysis that Your Honor did, but Your Honor then specifically awarded our attorney fees for the appeal.

And the difference was the Court of Appeals gave this Court direction to do that. So in appeal one it said, we remand, or under appeal one was only remanded for attorney fees. Everything else stood on the contempt and all others. And then it said with the Judge Kouris ruling, since he didn't do the needs-based and reasonableness, it was remanded. So then the Court of Appeals gave this Court direction and said, if the court finds that there was need and does that analysis, then it can enter the attorney fees and specifically the court said, and the court

can then address the attorney fees for appeal number one. And so they're not disputing that.

And the only reason I bring it up is in appeal number two and that page number 5 specifically then, Your Honor, I'm looking at Line 3 again, backing up just a little bit, it's says, likewise, there is no basis to grant wife's request for an award of attorney fees and costs on appeal. Husband argues that with a reversal he should be awarded his attorney fees and costs below," and we're not going to dispute that. But it doesn't say anything about his attorney fees for appeal two.

And they're saying in the affidavit Mr. Richards provided in February, had a total of the pre-appeal fees of \$3,900 - \$3,902.50 and then had his appeal two fees in addition which I don't think, well, don't think - the court didn't say that they would be entitled to that ...

... (going to Record @417, page 9, line 16)

MR. FRIEL: Thank you, Your Honor. I've tracked with Mr. Richards' calculations and I think we are together. The issue is did Your Honor mean in the minute entry to include all of his fees, which I don't think was, well, it was not set forth by the Court of Appeals, or was it just up to the time of the filing of the appeal?

THE COURT: The answer is, I meant to include all of his fees exactly the way he put the order together.

Therefore, on its own accord, in the remand hearing the trial court lumped Respondent's attorney fees and costs incurred up to the time of the appeal totaling \$3,902.50 along with adding Respondent's appeal two attorney's fees of \$7,463.04 which totals the \$11,365.54 entered in the Court's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, paragraph 24, (Record @ 818) and Order Regarding Fees and Costs on Remand, paragraph 2 (Record @ 821). It is Petitioner's position that the \$7,463.04 which were all of Respondent's appellate fees awarded by the trial court, should be reversed.

ARGUMENT: POINT THREE

**THERE IS CASELAW HANDED DOWN FROM THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS
GIVING SPECIFIC DIRECTIVES REGARDING WHEN TRIAL COURTS MAY CONSIDER
AWARDING APPELLATE ATTORNEY FEES- DID THE TRIAL COURT IN ANDERSON II
ADHERE TO THOSE DIRECTIVES?**

In the case of Slattery v. Covey & Co., 909 P.2d 925, 929 (Utah Ct. App. 1995) (Slattery II) the Utah court of Appeals dealt directly head on with the exact same issues that Petitioner is asking the Court to consider in the case at hand. In Slattery II, the Utah Court of Appeals found that the trial court had exceeded its authority on remand by awarding Slattery judgment for attorney fees incurred by her in Slattery I. The Court went on to say that its decision in Slattery I specifically declined to consider Slattery's request for attorney fees on appeal (See Slattery I, 857 P.2d at 249 n.4).

The issue identified in Slattery II is identical to this appeal as the Court examines its reversal and remand directives from Anderson II. The last sentence of the remand decision from Anderson II states, "Accordingly, we remand to the district court to determine if an award of costs and attorney fees should be awarded to Husband and, if so, to determine the amount" (Record @ 536).

Earlier, in the same paragraph the Court of Appeals states, "Husband argues that with a reversal, he should be awarded his attorney fees and court costs below". On remand the Court of Appeals did allow the district court to consider Respondent's attorney fees and court costs and Petitioner is not challenging that ruling. However, the issue

remains: did the Court of Appeals in Anderson II authorize or direct the trial court to examine Respondent's appellate attorney fees in its decision.

Respondent might argue that since the Court of Appeals was silent on this issue the trial court could infer or take liberties in its decision to award the \$7,463.04 to Respondent for his appellate attorney fees incurred in Anderson II. This is the exact argument used in Slattery II. Specifically, the Utah Court of Appeals went on to say in Slattery II that, "Our refusal to consider Slattery's request for attorney fees is tantamount to a denial of that request, thus resolving that issue against Slattery. A trial court cannot consider the issue of entitlement to appellate attorney fees on its own initiative because this decision is the sole prerogative of the appellate court." TS 1 Partnership v. Allred, 877 P.2d 156, 160 n. 2 (Utah Ape.1994); Yorke Management v. Castro, 406 Mass. 17, 546 N.E.2d 342, 344 (1989); Vinton Eppsco, Inc. of Albuquerque v. Showe Homes, Inc., 97 N.M. 225, 226, ' 638 P.2d 1070, 1071 (1981); Schere v. Z.F., Inc., 578 So.2d 739, 740 (Fla.3d Dist.Ct.App.1991).

The Utah Court of Appeals ended its decision in Slattery II by stating on the issue of appellate attorney fees that, "the only time a trial court has any discretion in the matter of appellate attorney fees is when an appellate court determines that appellate attorney fees are warranted, but remands the issue to the trial court for a determination of the amount to be awarded. Vinton Eppsco, 638 p.2d at 1071.

Interestingly enough, when the Utah Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the trial court's initial decision to award Petitioner her attorney fees and court costs, the Court of Appeals in Anderson I did specifically give the trial court remand directives that it could consider entering findings to support a decision for Petitioner to receive her appellate

attorney fees. However, the Court of Appeals gave no such directives to the trial court in Anderson II regarding consideration of Respondent's appellate attorney fees and costs.

Further, the Utah Court of Appeals affirmed its decision on appellate attorney fees from Slattery in its decision in 2005 in the case of Cache County v. Beus, 128 P.3d 63, 539 Utah Adv. Rep. 72, 2005 UT App 503. In Cache County the Utah Court of Appeals reversed and remanded the trial court's decision to award Cache County its attorney fees and court costs from inception of the case. In its reversal and remand the Court of Appeals followed the rationale it had developed in Slattery by stating, "The trial court had no discretion to award Cache County attorney fees it had incurred on appeal in Cache County I". The Court of Appeals went on to restate in Cache County II the exact same caselaw it had carved out in Slattery II regarding appellate attorney fees.

POINT FOUR

IF THE COURT OF APPEALS REVERSES THE TRIAL COURT'S DECISION REGARDING APPELLATE ATTORNEY FEES AS REQUESTED IN THIS APPEAL, SHOULD PETITIONER BE ENTITLED TO CONSIDERATION OF HER APPELLATE ATTORNEY FEES FOR THIS APPEAL?

It possible for the Utah Court of Appeals to consider awarding Petitioner her appeal attorney fees for this appeal. If Petitioner is successful on this appeal, Respondent would still have substantially prevailed in Anderson II. As the Utah Court of Appeals has recently pointed out, "there can be only one prevailing party in any litigation" (Chang v. Soldier Summit Dev.; 2003 UT App 415, 82 P.3d 203).

On remand, the trial court followed the directives of the Utah Court of Appeals by its consideration of Respondent's costs and attorney fees. The trial court entered an award of attorney fees and costs in favor of Respondent for litigation expenses incurred up to the filing of appeal number two and it is Petitioner's position that the trial court also entered an order granting Respondent his appellate attorney fees from Anderson II, which was incorrect.

As an equity or fairness issue, is it proper that Petitioner must expend a good portion of funds she is seeking back from Respondent based upon the trial court not properly following the remand directives of the Utah Court of Appeals. Or is this deemed as the cost of litigation and doing business?

If the Court grants Petitioner the relief she is seeking in this third appeal between the parties, this means that Petitioner will have prevailed in two of the three appeal cases. Respondent filed Anderson I and Petitioner prevailed. Respondent filed Anderson II and Respondent prevailed. Yet, Petitioner will have received appellate attorney fees in Anderson I only.


If this matter is reversed as Petitioner is requesting, there will be additional attorney fees needed and required for Petitioner to successfully finish what was a trial court error. Petitioner seeks an award of her attorney fees for the fees and costs necessary for this appeal.

CONCLUSION

The reversal and remand directives from the Utah Court of Appeals in Anderson II are clear. Specific instruction was not given by the Utah Court of Appeals to the district

trial court for the trial court to consider awarding Respondent his appellate attorney fees and costs in Anderson II. Without that directive from the Utah Court of Appeals, the district trial court had no authority to issue an order granting Respondent \$7,463.01 in appellate attorney fees from Anderson II. Therefore, the Findings and Order of the trial court must be reversed and Petitioner should be awarded attorney fees for this appeal.