2009

Linda Anderson v. Glen Hunter Thompson : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

If the Third District Court erred in awarding Thompson his attorneys' fees on appeal, any error was harmless. If a specific remand instruction should have been given, the ultimate result is the same. Thompson was entitled to his attorneys' fees on appeal.

Thompson is also entitled to his attorneys' fees on this appeal. This appeal should be remanded to the Third District Court for this award of fees.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT
CORRECTLY FOLLOWED THE COURT
OF APPEALS REMAND BY
CONSIDERING ATTORNEYS' FEES
BOTH AT THE TRIAL COURT AND
APPELLATE COURT LEVEL.

The Court of Appeals remanded the case to determine if an award of costs and attorneys' fees should be made to Thompson and, if so, to determine the amount. The determination of whether an award of costs and attorneys' fees should be made involved making a finding as to whether Thompson was the prevailing party. The Third District Court found Thompson clearly prevailed on appeal in the Minute Entry entered March 20, 2009 (R. @ 725 and Appellee Addendum 1). This finding is also made in the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law entered September 24, 2009 (R. Par. 17 @ 818).

The instructions on remand are not limited to trial court fees. The instructions are to determine if an award of attorneys' fees should be made and to determine the amount. Thompson met all of the requirements for an award of attorneys' fees on appeal.

Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3(2) provides a statutory basis for the award of attorneys' fees. This statute as relied on by this Court in remanding the case states:

Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3(2), provides that, "in any action to enforce an order of custody, parent-time, child support, alimony, or division of property in a domestic case, the Court may award costs and attorneys fees upon determining that the parties substantially prevailed upon the claim or defense." Accordingly, we remand to the District Court to determine if an award of costs and attorneys fees should be awarded the husband and, if so, to determine the amount.

2008 Ut. App. 170 @ 10.

The standard for awarding attorneys' fees on appeal is whether a party is entitled to attorneys' fees in the trial court. In Oliekan v. Oliekan, 147 P.3d 464, 471, 562 Utah Adv. Rep. 15 (Ut. App. 2006), this Court stated the law applicable to attorneys' fees on appeal as follows:

...In divorce actions, we will generally award attorneys fees on appeal to the prevailing party if the trial court awarded attorneys fees and the receiving party

prevails on the main issues on appeal...
(Citations omitted.)

In Oliekan, the Court determined that the wife had not prevailed on appeal and was not entitled to attorneys' fees. However, in this appeal, the case was remanded to the District Court to determine if under the standards of Utah Code Ann. §30-3-3(2) Respondent was entitled to an award of costs and attorneys' fees. The standard to be applied was whether the Respondent substantially prevailed upon the claim or defense. The Third District Court (in Finding of Fact 17 and Conclusions of Law 4 that are not subject to Anderson's appeal) found that Thompson clearly prevailed on the appeal and was entitled to attorneys' fees. (R. @ 817-818 and Appellant's Addendum 1). These attorneys' fees include those on appeal.

Attorneys' fees on appeal were requested by Thompson. Thompson in the second appeal requests attorneys' fees in the Appellant's Brief (Appellee's Addendum 2) and in the Reply Brief (Appellee's Addendum 3). Issue 4 in the Statement of Issues is "Did the District Court err in not awarding Respondent his attorneys' fees?" (Appellee's Addendum 2 Pg. 6). Point VII of the Appellant's Brief in the second appeal not only addresses denial of Anderson's fees, it also request Thompson's attorneys' fees. As to fees on appeal, the Appellant's Brief states, "Respondent is also entitled to his attorneys' fees and costs of appeal." (Appellee's Addendum 2 Pgs. 26-28).

In Point V of the Appellant's Reply Brief in the second appeal, the basis for attorneys' fees is analyzed. In the Conclusion, Thompson states: "This case should be remanded for an award of the Appellant's attorneys' fees including fees on appeal." (Appellee's Addendum 3 Pg. 11).

Thompson met all the requirements to recover his attorneys' fees on appeal. The remand instructions should be read to require a determination of the amount for attorneys' fees for Thompson at both the trial court and appellate court levels.

POINT II

THE DISTRICT COURT ON REMAND HAD AUTHORITY TO ADDRESS THE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS AT THE TRIAL COURT AND APPELLATE COURT LEVEL.

As set forth in Point I, Thompson was entitled to attorneys' fees at the trial court and appellate court levels as the prevailing party in the trial court and as the prevailing party in the second appeal. Anderson relies upon Cache County v. Beus, 128 P.3d 63, 539 Utah Adv. Rep. 72 (Ut. App. 2005) as support that attorneys' fees can be awarded only when specifically remanded. Anderson's reliance upon Beus is in error based upon the facts and circumstances of the Beus case as well as the holding. Beus was before the Court of Appeals on two occasions.

In the first appeal reported at 978 P.2d 1043, 368 Utah Adv. Rep. 13 (Ut. App. 1998), the Court concluded that Beus (not Cache County) substantially prevailed on appeal. Beus was awarded his reasonable attorneys' fees incurred on appeal. Following the remand in the first appeal and in contradiction to the award of fees to Beus, the trial court awarded Cache County all of its attorneys' fees including fees on appeal. This Court reversed this award of fees to Cache County on two bases. First, the contract pursuant to which attorneys' fees were recoverable provided that costs and fees were recoverable for successful vindication of contractual rights. The trial court's award of attorneys' fees and costs to Cache County from the inception of the case failed to consider only fees and costs attributable to the successful vindication of contractual rights. Second, the Court reversed the trial court as to attorneys' fees on the first appeal because the first appeal decision had not awarded Cache County fees but had awarded Beus attorneys' fees. The Court did not allow the trial court to make an inconsistent determination of fees.

Anderson incorrectly analyzes Slattery v. Covey & Co., 909 P.2d 926, 929 (Ut. App. 1995). Anderson asserts that this case stands for the proposition that the trial court cannot consider attorneys' fees on appeal except as specifically authorized to do so. However, in the first Slattery appeal, the trial court had ruled that each party would bear its own attorneys' fees. Slattery made its first request

for attorneys' fees at the Court of Appeals based on an employment contract. The Court refused to address the claim for attorneys' fees. The Court stated:

Slattery also seeks attorneys' fees on appeal, based on the employment contract. However, she was not awarded attorneys' fees at the trial and did not appeal from that determination. Because Slattery does not present any argument to support her request for fees on appeal, we decline to address the issue.

857 P.2d 243 at 249.

The Slattery decision found the trial court exceeded its authority on remand because the Court of Appeals awarded no attorneys' fees. The finding of the trial court that each party would bear their own costs and attorneys' fees was not appealed. A separate effort to claim attorneys' fees on appeal even though not allowed at the trial court level was not addressed by the Court of Appeals. The trial court's subsequent award of attorneys' fees was inconsistent with the original trial court decision that had not been appealed, the Court of Appeals' refusal to allow attorneys' fees on appeal when first raised at the Court of Appeals level and the Court of Appeals remand.

Other cases cited by Anderson also are different from the current situation and are not controlling. Anderson cites a footnote from TS 1 Partnership v. Allred, 877 P.2d 156, 239 Ut. Adv. Rep. 51 (Ut. App. 1991) for the proposition that it is not within the province of a trial court to award attorneys' fees on appeal from that

court. An award of attorneys' fees on appeal is the prerogative of the appellate court. TS 1 Partnership involved an improper certification of a final order pursuant to Rule 54(b), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The appellate court found both parties should pay their own costs related to the improper certification and appeal of the original summary judgment that was not a final order. The Court footnoted that an award of attorneys' fees on appeal is the prerogative of the appellate court. The basis for not awarding attorneys' fees related to the nature of the proceeding and the outcome, not to entitlement to attorneys' fees on appeal.

In Yorke Management v. Castro, 406 Mass. 17, 546 N.E.2d 342, 344 (1989), the Massachusetts Court addressed a Massachusetts procedure different from that applicable in Utah respecting the determination of attorneys' fees on appeal. The Massachusetts Court acknowledged that a basis for attorneys' fees existed under Massachusetts law. The Court stated: "the right to appellate attorneys' fees under the statutes is beyond dispute." The language of the Yorke Management case about authorization from an appellate court to a trial judge related to the procedure wherein the Massachusetts appellate court addressed the amount and appropriateness of attorneys' fee claims rather than remanding this determination to the trial court. The Massachusetts Court did not change its existing procedure retaining for the appellate court the responsibility for determination of the attorneys' fees on appeal.

In Vinton Eppson Inc. of Albuquerque v. Showe Homes, 638 P.2d 1070 (New Mexico 1981), the Supreme Court of New Mexico addressed a request to remand the case for an assessment of appellate attorney fees and decided against remanding for that purpose. Consequently, on the subsequent appeal, the Supreme Court ruled the District Court had exceeded the mandate of the Supreme Court of New Mexico by awarding appellate attorneys' fees.

In Schere v. Z.F. Inc., 578 So.2d 729 (Fl. 3d DCA 1991), the Court addressed two separate requests for attorneys' fees on appeal. One of two plaintiffs proceeded to obtain a final judgment of foreclosure. This judgment was affirmed on appeal with a motion for attorneys' fees being denied. See Tobin v. Compte, 553 So.2d 1180 (Fl. 3d DCA 1989). The plaintiff subsequently filed a motion for attorneys' fees in the trial court. The trial court granted the motion but denied the request for attorneys' fees incurred at trial and fees for defending a judgment on appeal and costs. These additional motions that included the request for attorneys' fees on appeal were denied. The Florida appellate court reversed the denial of the motion for trial fees and costs.

The second creditor filed a foreclosure action. The holder of a third mortgage was a defendant who moved to dismiss the action. A motion to dismiss was denied. The defendant creditor appealed with the appeal being affirmed. See Tobin v. Schere, 546 So.2d 796 (Fl. 3d DCA 1989). The appeals court denied a

motion for attorneys' fees. The case was then voluntarily dismissed with prejudice by the plaintiff. The plaintiff then sought costs and attorneys' fees for services before the trial court and for defending the appeal. The trial court denied the motion for fees and the appeal was taken. Because the plaintiff had voluntarily dismissed, the appellate court ruled the voluntary dismissal terminated the trial court's jurisdiction thereby removing jurisdiction from the court for further proceedings.

The prior Florida cases cited in Schere for the proposition that a specific remand for appellate attorneys' fees is required are likewise different than this appeal. In Hornsby v. Newman, 444 So.2d 90 (Fl. 3d DCA 1984), the trial court made an award of attorneys' fees in connection with a custody action on a claim for allowance of temporary attorneys' fees. The court reversed the award of temporary attorneys' fees because it impermissibly compensated Appellee's counsel for services rendered during prior appeals. The Court stated:

Absent a remand from an Appellate Court, a trial court lacks authority to award appellate attorneys' fees. Furthermore, there is another, perhaps even more glaring deficiency in the record. An Appellee/mother failed to establish her need for, and the father's ability to pay a reasonable attorneys' fee... (Citations omitted.)

444 So.2d 90 at 91.

In Ellswick v. Martinez, 394 So.2d 529 (Fl. 3d DCA 1981), the Court addressed an appeal of orders awarding child support, expert witness fees, travel expenses and costs incident to a birth in a contested paternity case. The award of attorneys' fees was affirmed with the exception of the portions expressly attributed to legal services on the prior appeal. The prior appeal, Ellswick v. Martinez, 341 So.2d 1095 (Fl. 3d DCA 1976), involved a one-word opinion "affirmed."

The Florida cases involve unique Florida procedures. Rule 9.400 Florida Rules Appellate Procedure provides a motion for attorneys' fees to be served not later than the time for service of the Reply Brief and shall state the grounds upon which relief is sought. The assessment of attorneys' fees may be remanded to the lower tribunal. If attorneys' fees are assessed by the court, the lower tribunal may enforce payment.

In three of the cases cited by Anderson, the trial court acted on attorneys' fees on appeal after the issue had been specifically rejected. (Beus, Slattery and TS 1 Partnership). In Vinton Eppson there was no remand to the trial court. In Yorke Management and Schere, Massachusetts and Florida had unique procedures for appellate attorneys' fees not applicable to this case. In this appeal, the cases cited by Anderson do not support her position that the trial court acted in opposition to the mandate of this Court. Rather, in this case, Thompson meets the requirements for recovery of attorneys' fees on appeal.

POINT III

THE MANDATE DOCTRINE DOES NOT APPLY TO CIRCUMSTANCES IN WHICH APPLICATION OF THE RULE IS ERRONEOUS.

The mandate doctrine is a law of the case doctrine providing that matters adjudicated by an appellate court are final and not subject to further trial court action. The mandate doctrine did not preclude the Third District Court from awarding Thompson his attorneys' fees on appeal.

As set forth in this Brief, the trial court acted within the scope of the remand in addressing appellate attorneys' fees for Thompson. There was a remand for attorneys' fees without limitation as to the trial court or appellate court levels. Assuming arguendo that the Court did not make a remand to the Third District Court specific enough to allow consideration of appellate attorneys' fees, exceptions to the mandate rule apply to allow a trial court to consider the attorneys' fees on appeal. In Street v. Fourth Judicial District Court, 113 Ut. 60, 191 P.2d 153 (Ut. 1948), the Utah Supreme Court addressed whether on remand the District Court could consider amended pleadings and different issues than existed prior to the remand. The Court stated:

The principles boil down to this fundamental proposition: As to all matters adjudicated by the appellate court, both the trial court and the parties are foreclosed from further trying those matters. They become the law of the

case. But as to matters left open by the appellate court, it is within the sound discretion of the trial court to permit amended or supplemental proceedings as to those matters.

191 P.2d 153 @ 158.

This Court instructed the Third District Court to “determine if an award of costs and attorneys’ fees should be awarded the husband and, if so, to determine the amount.” (R. @ 536). This Court did not deny attorneys’ fees to Thompson. Consequently, the remand to the District Court for consideration of attorneys’ fees involves at least a matter left open by this Court.

In Gilden v. Guardian Title, 31 P.3d 543, 438 Ut. Adv. Rep. 21 (Ut. 2001), the Court addressed the implications of the mandate doctrine. The Court noted that the mandate doctrine is not applied inflexibly. The Court stated:

... Indeed, this court need not apply the doctrine to promote efficiency at the expense of the greater interest in preventing unjust results or unwise precedent. Accordingly, the doctrine will generally not be enforced under the following exceptional circumstances:

- (1) When there has been an intervening change of controlling authority;
- (2) When new evidence has become available; or
- (3) When the court is convinced that its prior decision is clearly erroneous and would work a manifest injustice.

In this case, assuming that the Appeals Court did not remand for a determination of Thompson's appellate attorneys' fees, the third exception to the mandate rule applies. Thompson met all of the requirements to be awarded appellate fees. To deny Thompson the appellate fees would be clearly erroneous and would work a manifest injustice. The manifest injustice being that Thompson would be denied the fees he is entitled to because no specific reference to appellate fees was made in the remand of this Court. The award of attorneys' fees at the trial court and appellate court level for Anderson in the first appeal while denying appellate fees to Thompson on a similar basis points out the injustice of Anderson's position.

In Plumb v. State, 809 P.2d 734 (Ut. 1990), the Utah Supreme Court discussed the rationale of the law of the case doctrine. The doctrine protects the decisions already made in a case. Specifically, the Court stated:

... The law of the case doctrine generally provides that a decision on an issue at one stage of a case is binding in successive stages of the same litigation. However, this doctrine does not prevent a judge from reconsidering his or her previous non-final orders. As Justice Holmes once noted, the law of the case doctrine "merely expresses the practice of courts generally to refuse to reopen what has been decided, not a limit to their power.".. (Citations omitted).

809 P.2d 734 @ 739-740.

The issue of Thompson's appellate attorneys' fees was not decided by the District Court or the Court of Appeals prior to the appeal. There was no prior decision that was being revisited by the trial court in opposition to the decision of this Court. The District Court properly acted within its power. The Third District Court's award of attorneys' fees is consistent with the Court of Appeals remand and applicable law.

POINT IV

IF THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN
AWARDING THOMPSON'S
ATTORNEYS' FEES ON APPEAL
WITHOUT A SPECIFIC REMAND, THIS
ERROR WAS A HARMLESS ERROR.

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